
Contact: 
Tel: (65) 6481 1882  Fax: (65) 6481 3293 
Mr Tien Sing Cheong 	 Executive Chairman 	 Ext. 328
Mr Tan Ka Huat 	 Managing Director 	 Ext. 338

Address:
2 Ang Mo Kio Ave 12 Singapore 569707

CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited
Company Registration No: 199905114H

ANNUAL 

R E P O RT

2004



	1	 Corporate Profile / Corporate Information	

2	 Chairman’s Message	

4	 Board of Directors	

5	 Key Management Executives	

6	 Report on Corporate Governance	

14	 Risk Identification, Management Policies and Processes	

16	 Financial Highlights	

17	 Financial Report	

56	 Statistics of Shareholders	

57	 Notice of AGM	

59	 Proxy Form

Contents



1

Corporate Profile

Board of Directors
Tien Sing Cheong (Executive Chairman)
Tan Ka Huat (Managing Director)
Gan Chee Yen (Non-Executive Director)
Tan Bien Chuan (Independent Director)
Tang Martin Yue Nien (Independent Director)

Nominating Committee
Tan Bien Chuan (Chairman)
Tang Martin Yue Nien
Tien Sing Cheong

Remuneration Committee
Tang Martin Yue Nien (Chairman)
Tan Bien Chuan
Gan Chee Yen

Audit Committee
Tan Bien Chuan (Chairman)
Tang Martin Yue Nien
Gan Chee Yen

CEI ESOS Committee
Tan Bien Chuan (Chairman)
Tang Martin Yue Nien
Gan Chee Yen
Tien Sing Cheong
Tan Ka Huat

Company Secretary
Susie Low Geok Eng

Registered Office
10 Collyer Quay 
#19-08 Ocean Building
Singapore 049315

Share Registrar and 
Share Transfer Office
Lim Associates (Pte) Ltd
10 Collyer Quay 
#19-08 Ocean Building
Singapore 049315

Business Office
2 Ang Mo Kio Avenue 12
Singapore 569707

Auditors
Ernst & Young 
Certified Public Accountants
Simon Yeo (Engagement Partner)*
10 Collyer Quay 
#21-00 Ocean Building
Singapore 049315

*Appointed in Financial Year 2003

Solicitors
Colin Ng & Partners
50 Raffles Place
#29-00 Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623

Bankers
Citibank N.A. (Singapore Branch)
3 Temasek Avenue
#17-00 Centennial Tower
Singapore 039190

Oversea-Chinese 
Banking Corporation Limited
65 Chulia Street
#10-00 OCBC Centre
Singapore 049513

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking 
Corporation Limited
21 Collyer Quay
#01-00 HSBC Building
Singapore 049320

Founded in 1980 and listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited in 

March 2000, CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited is an established contract manufacturer.

Apart from PTH (Plated-Through-Hole) and SMT (Surface-Mounted-Technology) assembly, ICT (In-Circuit 

Testing) and functional testing capabilities, the Company is also well equipped to provide value-added services 

such as materials management, circuit layout design, prototype engineering and product design & development 

engineering.

The Company serves customers within the industrial equipment market segment. These include electro-

luminescent displays used in industrial, transportation and medical applications; medical and health care 

equipment; office equipment as in digital photocopiers; analytical instruments as in gas and liquid 

chromatographs and measurement instruments; industrial safety controllers and environmental sensors.

The Company is QS9000, ISO9001:2000, AS9100 (Letter of Conformance) and People Developer certified.

Batamindo Industrial Park
Lot 312 Jalan Beringin, Muka Kuning

Batam, Indonesia

2 Ang Mo Kio Avenue 12
Singapore 569707

2, Street 6 Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park
Thuan An, Binh Duong Province

Vietnam



2 3

Chairman’s Message

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

FINANCIAL YEAR 2004

In Financial Year (FY) 2004, the Group’s Revenue increased by 52.4% or $21.5 million, from $41.0 million in FY 2003 to 
$62.5 million.  Comparing the Group’s Revenue on a half year basis, the first and second half Group’s Revenue for 
FY2004 were $28.6 million and $33.9 million respectively.   The improvement in the second half was in line with our
expectation that business condition would improve, starting in the second half of FY2004.  

The Group recorded a Profit After Taxation of $5.7 million, an increase of 62.4% over FY2003.  Profit After Taxation as 
a percentage of Revenue was 9.1% and 8.4% for FY2004 and FY2003 respectively.   The increase in profit was due to 
(1) an increase in Revenue; (2) lower share of associated company losses since Tangera Pte Ltd is now a wholly owned 
subsidiary; and  (3) a decrease in Group tax arising from a reduction in Singapore Corporate Tax Rate from 22% (FY 
2003) to 20% (FY 2004), and also a lower tax provision for tax of a subsidiary company.

During FY2004, seven new customers were engaged.  Sales to these customers were $0.11 million or 0.17% of Group’s 
Revenue. This modest number is consistent with all our early engagement of new customers. We believe that some
of these new customers will become significant contributors to our revenue in the years ahead.

During the year, the Company acquired a 23% interest in Santec Corporation Pte Ltd ("Santec"), which is in the precision 
metal machining and stamping activities. This investment will allow us to provide a wider range of services beyond 
PCB assembly to our customers. Santec's presence in Shanghai also help to extend our geographical coverage.

In FY2004, the Company was awarded the AS 9100 (Letter of Conformance). This is an important development for us 
because it enables us to address opportunities in the aerospace industry. We are also working on the award of ISO 
13485, which we expect to secure by third quarter 2005. This will position us to meet the requirements from the medical 
industry.

In October 2004, the Company upgraded to the Oracle ERP System. This help us to drive production towards lean
manufacturing, optimise supply chain management and enhance materials requisition planning and control.

The Group’s financial position remains strong with net cash of $17.8 million at the end of FY2004.

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005

We expect sustainable growth in the Group’s Revenue in the 
first half of FY2005.  This was confirmed by higher turnover in 
the months of January and February and supported by much 
improved book to bill ratio.  We are in a good position to take 
on increased business opportunities with the production
capacities we have installed in Batam and Vietnam.

Since the beginning of FY2005, we are seeing increased 
customer visits.  Also, we have intensified our coverage in the 
US with the engagement of a Manufacturer’s Representative. 
Over the last 3 years,  we have become less dependent on any
one major customer by increasing our customer base.

DIVIDENDS

The Board is pleased to recommend payment of :	
•	 A second and final dividend of 0.425 cents per share	
 	 amounting to approximately $1.1 million; and 	
•	 A special dividend of 0.65 cents per share amounting to 		

approximately $2.0 million.

After deduction of Section 44 taxation credits required for 
franking the above dividends,  the Company will have utilised 
most of Section 44 taxation credits available. Including interim 
dividend paid during the year, the total dividend paid for the 
financial year will be 1.8 cents per share amounting to 
approximately to $5.7 million.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

My sincere appreciation to our Customers, Partners in our 
supply chain, Shareholders and Members of CEI, for your 
continual support.

	 	 	 	   
Tien Sing Cheong				

Chairman			
20 February 2005
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Mr Tien Sing Cheong
Executive Chairman

Appointed as Executive Director on 28 August 1999 and was last re-elected on 8 April 2003. Mr 
Tien is also the Executive Chairman of the Company. Mr Tien holds a Bachelor of Science in 
Engineering degree from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science degree from Stanford 
University, California and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Santa 
Clara, California. Mr Tien is also a Fellow of the Institution of Mechanical Engineers, United Kingdom.

Mr Gan Chee Yen
Non-Executive Director

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director since 28 August 1999 and was last re-elected on 8 April 
2003. Mr Gan is the Managing Director, Finance of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited.  He also 
holds non-executive directorships on the Boards of Neptune Orient Lines Ltd and Somerset Global 
Corporation Limited. Mr Gan holds a Bachelor of Accountancy degree from the National University 
of Singapore. He has also participated in the Program for Management Development at the Havard 
Business School in September 2001.

Mr Tan Ka Huat
Managing Director

Appointed as Executive Director on 28 August 1999 and also Managing Director 
of the Company. Mr Tan holds a Bachelor of Science (Physics) degree from Nanyang 
University (now NTU), a Diploma in Business Administration from the National 
University of Singapore and a Master of Business degree from University of 
Technology, Sydney.

Mr Tang Martin Yue Nien
Independent Director

Appointed as an Independent and Non-Executive Director on 9 February 2000 and was last 
re-elected on 25 March 2004. Mr. Tang is Chairman, Asia of Spencer Stuart, a global executive 
search consulting firm, and is based in Hong Kong. He is a director of Tristate Holdings Ltd, a 
company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering 
from Cornell University in Ithaca, New York and a Masters of Science degree from the Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology’s Sloan School of Management.

Mr Tan Bien Chuan
Independent Director

Appointed as an Independent and Non-Executive Director on 9 February 2000 and 
was last re-elected on 18 April 2002. Mr Tan is the co-founder and Managing 
Director of OCBC, Wearnes & Walden Management (Singapore) Pte Ltd,  a venture 
capital firm. He is also a non-executive director of Goodpack Limited. Mr Tan holds 
a Bachelor of Science (Hons) degree in Computer Science and Accounting from 
the University of Manchester, United Kingdom and is a member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

B oard of Directors



Mr Seow Sin Leng

Mr Seow Sin Leng is the Senior Director, Corporate Services. Mr Seow holds a Bachelor 
of Accountancy degree and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University 
of Singapore.

Mr Ng Cheng Kung

Mr Ng Cheng Kung is the Senior Operations Manager. Mr Ng holds an Advanced Diploma 
in Automation in Manufacturing from the Singapore Polytechnic.

Mr Heng Teck Yow

Mr Heng Teck Yow is the Senior Engineering Manager (Technical). Mr Heng holds a 
Diploma in Industrial Engineering.

Mr Tien Sing Gee

Mr Tien Sing Gee is the General Director of CEI International Investments (VN) Limited,  
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited.  Mr Tien holds a 
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Alberta,  
a Master of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Stanford University,  and a 
Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Santa Clara.

Mr Lim Piak Hwa

Mr Lim Piak Hwa is the Senior Director, Materials Management. Mr Lim holds a Bachelor 
of Engineering degree from the National University of Singapore, a graduate diploma 
in Marketing Management from the Singapore Institute of Management and a Master of 
Business (Accounting) degree from Monash University, Melbourne.

Ms Thng Ah Hiang

Ms Thng Ah Hiang is the Director, Sales & Marketing. Ms Thng holds a Diploma in 
Industrial Management from the Singapore Polytechnic.

Mr Hung Nyet Hiong

Mr Hung Nyet Hiong is the Senior Manager (Projects). Mr Hung holds a Bachelor of 
Engineering (Electrical) degree from the National University of Singapore.

Key Management Executives
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CEI is committed to observing good standards of corporate governance and a continual process of developing 
procedures and policies in keeping with best business practice.  

This Report describes CEI’s corporate governance practices with specific reference to the Code Of Corporate 
Governance (“Code”), a “listing requirement” under the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

Where otherwise indicated, CEI believes that it has and will remain compliant with the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In complying with the Code,  –

•	 The Company is headed by an effective Board to lead and control its operations and affairs (Principle 1); 

•	 Frequency of Board meetings and Committee meetings held during the financial year are set out under Table	
A (Guidance Note 1.1); 

•	 In ensuring that operations and Board executive time are not disrupted, Board and Committee meetings for the
 	 ensuing financial year are organised prior to the start of each ensuing financial year (Guidance Note 3.2(a));

•	 The Executive Chairman sets the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with the Managing Director.  	
As a general rule, board papers are disseminated to directors at least 5 days prior to a scheduled meeting. As

 	 and when required, management personnel are invited to Board meetings to provide additional information
 	 on any matters held for discussion (Guidance Note 3.2(b));

•	 Apart from scheduled Board Meetings, all directors are appraised of the financial performance of the Company 	
and the Group on a quarterly basis (Guidance Note 3.2(c));

•	 Article 120(2) of the Company’s Articles provide for telephonic and video-conferencing meetings 	
(Guidance Note 1.1); 

•	 All transactions concerning mergers and acquisitions, including material capital expenditures 	
(exceeding $300,000.00) are discussed and come under the Board’s purview (Guidance Note 1.2); 

•	 The Company will consider appropriate training and orientation programmes for newly appointed and existing
 	 directors (Guidance Note 1.3);

•	 The Company’s Board composition and balance comprise independent directors making up at least one-third
 	 of the Board (Guidance Note 2.1);

•	 Directors are only considered independent under circumstances spelt out in Principle 2, Guidance Note 2.1 of 	
the Code (Guidance Note 2.1);

•	 In considering the scope and nature of the operations of the Company and of the Group, the current size of 	
the Board is considered appropriate.  Additional members will be added to the Board as and when circumstances

 	 require (Guidance Note 2.3);

•	 There are adequate relevant competencies of the directors,  who as a group carry specialist backgrounds 	
in strategic planning and direction,  industry knowledge and experience,  accounting and finance,  investment

 	 banking and corporate finance and human resource executive search and  management (Guidance Note 2.4); 

•	 The Company’s Board assumes responsibility for corporate governance (Guidance Note 3.2).

•	 Should directors, whether as a group or individually, need independent professional advice, the Company
 	 Secretary will, upon direction by the Board, appoint a professional advisor selected by the group or the individual,
 	 to render the advice.  Such costs from professional advice rendered will be borne by the Company (Principle
 	 6.4 ); and
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The Company Secretary attends all board meetings and is responsible to ensure that board procedures are
 	 followed. It is also the Company Secretary’s responsibility to ensure that the Company complies with the
 	 requirements of the Companies Act and all other rules and regulations of the SGX  (Guidance Note 6.3).

Principle 3, Guidance Note 3.1 of the Code provides that for the Board “to ensure an appropriate balance of
power, increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for independent decision making”, the roles
of “chairman and chief executive officer should in principle be separate”. To observe this principle in structure
and in form, the position of an “executive chairman” may no longer be tenable under the Code.

The Company is non-compliant with the above and offers the following justifications –

The Board is comprised by a majority of independent and non-executive directors who when taken together
 	 can exercise objective judgement on corporate matters impartially; 

The Executive Chairman and Managing Director carry complementary responsibilities.   The Executive Chairman
 	 plays a pivotal role in steering the strategic direction and growth of the business while the Managing Director
 	 focuses his attention on day-to-day running of the operations; and

The Executive Chairman has considerable industry experience and is also a substantial shareholder 	
of the Company.  He is therefore motivated to contribute to the growth and profitability of the business.

Given the above,  the effectiveness and proper functioning of the Board is therefore not impaired.

TABLE A	

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS						

Nominating			 Remuneration		 Audit			

Board			 Committee			 Committee			 Committee					

Attended	 Attended	 Attended	 Attended	

Tien Sing Cheong	 100%	 100%	 NA	 NA 	

Tan Ka Huat	 100%	 NA	 NA	 NA	

Gan Chee Yen	 33 1/3%	 NA	 33 1/3%	 66 2/3%	

Tan Bien Chuan	 100%	 100%	  100%	 100%		

Tang Martin Yue Nien	 100%	 100%	 100%	 100%
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE (NC)

The NC’s establishment is mandated by Article 126 of the Articles with written terms of reference.

In complying with the Code, -

A formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors and re-appointment of directors is in placed 
and empowered through the NC’s Terms Of Reference (Principle 4).   

These principal functions include -

•	 Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new executive and non-executive directors,
 	 including making recommendations to the composition of the Board generally and the balance between executive
 	 and non-executive directors appointed to the Board  (Guidance Note 4.1);

•	 Responsibility for identifying and nominating candidates for the approval of the Board,  determining annually
 	 whether or not a director is independent (Guidance Note 4.3); 

•	 Recommending Directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election.  All Directors are required	
to submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals and at least every three years.  Article

 	 107 of the Articles requires one-third of the Board to retire by rotation at every AGM  (Guidance Note 4.2);

•	 Deciding whether or not a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a director of
 	 the Company, particularly when a director has multiple board representations (Guidance Note 4.4); and

•	 To adopt internal guidelines that address the competing time commitments that are faced when directors serve	
on multiple boards (Guidance Note 4.4) .      

Principle 5 of the Code provides that there “should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a 
whole and the contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board”.   

Given the current size of the Board,  that both executive directors of the Company are the Executive Chairman 
and Managing Director and that each independent and non-executive director hold specialist and complementary 
backgrounds,  the NC takes the view that an assessment of the Board’s performance as a whole correspondingly 
reflects the contribution of each director.  No evaluation of an individual director’s contribution was therefore 
deemed necessary  (Guidance Note 5.1 & 5.3).

Therefore, in evaluating the Board’s performance as a whole –

•	 Quantitative performance criteria such as return on assets, return on equity, return on investment, economic
 	 value added, profitability on capital employed together with other financial ratios were considered (Guidance
 	 Note 5.1 & 5.2); and 

•	 Qualitative performance criteria such as the Company’s strategic longer term and short term goals were considered
 	 (Guidance Note 5.1 & 5.2).

The Company’s share price performance over a period of five years, adjusted for returns, against the index of the 
All-Sing Equities Index, will be considered as a relevant criteria for assessing Board performance when the Company 
has passed five years as a listed company (Guidance Note 5.2).
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (RC)

The RC’s establishment is mandated by Article 126 of the Articles with written terms of reference.  

In complying with the Code –

The RC will review and recommend to the Board,  a framework of remuneration for the Board and key executives. 
The RC’s review will principally include –

•	 Review all aspects of remuneration including directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-	
in-kind (Principle 7); 

•	 Review remuneration packages against those comparable within the industry and comparable companies 	
where this is possible and that they are reasonable and that these should include a performance-related 	
element coupled to the Company’s financial performance (Guidance Note 7.3 and Principle 8); and

•	 Review remuneration packages of employees related to executive directors of the Company and of the Group
 	 and that these commensurate with their respective job scopes and levels of responsibility (Guidance Note 9.3).

The RC notes the following with respect to the current financial year –

With respect to remuneration packages for executive directors,  

•	 The Executive Chairman and Managing Director are currently on 2-year Service Agreements which commenced 	
on 1 November 2003 under terms and conditions approved by the Remuneration Committee; and

•	 The terms of remuneration for the Executive Chairman and Managing Director include a performance bonus
 	 element based on the Group’s profitability.

Executive directors do not receive Directors’ fees.

Non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees subject to approval at the AGM.

The Company’s CEI ESOS Scheme is administered by the CEI ESOS COMMITTEE of whom all members of the RC 
are also members of the CEI ESOS COMMITTEE.

Details of the CEI ESOS Scheme are disclosed in the Directors’ Report  (Guidance Note  9.4).



A breakdown showing the level and mix of each individual director’s remuneration payable for FY 2004 is as follows 
(Guidance Note 9.2):	

Directors’ Remuneration		

FEES	 SALARY	 BONUS	 BENEFITS	

NAME	 (S$)	 (S$)	 (S$)	 (S$)	

Tien Sing Cheong	 -	 196,535	 119,610	 56,153	

Tan Ka Huat	 -	 245,555	 123,310	 46,221	

Tan Bien Chuan	 43,000	 -	 -	 -	

Tang Martin Yue Nien	 43,000	 -	 -	 -	

Gan Chee Yen	 38,000	 -	 -	 -

Notes :

Directors Fees are subject to approval by shareholders as a lump sum at the AGM for FY 2004.

Directors’ interest in share options are disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

For Senior Executives Remuneration (Who Are Not Directors Of The Company), disclosure of the top five executives’ 
remuneration in bands of $250,000 is disclosed under Note 23 to the Accounts (Guidance Notes 9.1 & 9.2).

The remuneration for Tien Sing Gee, General Director of CEI International Investment (VN) Limited, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company is also disclosed under Note 23 to the Accounts. Mr Tien Sing Gee is related to the Executive 
Chairman (Guidance Note 9.3).

The Company adopts a remuneration policy for staff comprising a fixed component and variable component. The fixed 
component is in form of a base salary. The variable component is in the form of a variable bonus that is linked to the 
Company and individual performance (Principle 9).

10
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (AC)

The AC’s establishment is mandated by Article 126 of the Articles with written terms of reference.  

In complying with the Code –

•	 The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, full access and co-operation	
by Management and full discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings (Guidance

 	 Note 11.3);

•	 The AC reviews the scope and results of the external audit and its cost effectiveness and the independence 	
and objectivity of the external auditors (Guidance Note 11.4);

•	 The AC has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the auditors and is of the opinion that the 	
provision of such services does not affect the independence of the auditors;

•	 The AC meets with the external auditors and with the internal auditors respectively, without the presence of	
the Company’s management (Guidance Note 11.5); 

•	 The AC will review the independence of the external auditors annually (Guidance Note 11.6); and

•	 Nominate external auditors for re-appointment.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the systems of internal control maintained and set in place by management. 
The systems are intended to provide reasonable assurance, but not an absolute guarantee against material financial 
misstatement or loss, safeguarding investments and assets, reliability of financial information, compliance with 
appropriate legislation, regulation and best practice and the identification of business risks (Principle 12).

To a large extent, the Board’s responsibilities are fulfilled through the AC (Guidance Note 12.1).

The AC has reviewed the Company’s risk assessment based on the Internal Auditor reports and given the scope 
of work done and findings for the year, is assured that the Company’s systems of internal controls are adequately 
in place (Guidance Note 12.1) .

In addressing business risks and the adequacy of systems of internal controls, the AC has considered the following 
(Guidance Note 12.2)  –

•	 The review and identification of business risks is an ongoing process; and 

•	 A reliance on management and the internal auditors to identify key business risks prior to determining the
 	 scope and nature of internal audit work required.

The Company’s internal audit function is independent of the business activities it audits (Principle 13)  – 

•	 The internal audit function is outsourced to BDO Raffles (Guidance Notes 13.2 & 13.3 ) ;

•	 The internal auditor reports directly to the Chairman, AC (Guidance Note 13.1) ;

•	 The scope of internal audit work is proposed by the auditor and is approved by the AC (Guidance Note 13.4); 		
and

•	 To ensure the adequacy of the internal audit function,  the AC is appraised of the internal audit work, findings
 	 and follow-up work at all AC meetings. (Guidance Note 13.4)
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CEI ESOS COMMITTEE 

The CEI ESOS Committee comprises of five directors, two of whom hold executive positions.

The role of the Committee is to  –

•	 Ensure that the Rules of the CEI Employee Share Option Scheme are adhered to;

•	 Select eligible employees of the group to participate in CEI ESOS, the Company’s share option incentive 	
scheme; and

•	 Determine the number of shares and the subscription price to be offered to each participant taking into
 	 consideration, the service and performance of the participant.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In complying with the Code – 

•	 The Company has adopted half-yearly reporting of its financial results based on its market capitalisation and 	
are published through the SGXnet, news releases and the Company’s website (Guidance Note 14.1); 

•	 All information of the Company’s business initiatives are disclosed on a timely basis and does not practice
 	 selective disclosure (Guidance Note 14.2);

•	 The Company has also engaged the services of Zaobao.com, an investor relations company, as a means of
 	 reaching out to its mandarin speaking audience;

•	 The Company’s AGMs have been well attended and convenient venues have been selected in the past (Guidance
 	 Note 15.1);

•	 Shareholders are given ample time and opportunities to air their views and ask directors or management
 	 questions concerning the Company  (Guidance Note 15.1);

•	 Separate resolutions for each distinct issue are tabled for shareholders approval  (Guidance Note 15.2);

•	 Article 90(2) of the Articles allows a member of the Company to appoint up to two proxies to attend and vote
 	 instead of the member (Guidance Note 15.1).
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has issued a Policy on Share Dealings to key employees of the Company, setting out the implications 
of insider trading and the recommendations of the Best Practices Guide issued by the Singapore Exchange Securities 
Trading Limited. To further provide guidance to employees on dealing in the Company’s shares, the Company has 
adopted a code of conduct on transactions in the Company’s shares. The code of conduct was modeled after the 
Best Practices Guide with some modifications. For example, to enable the company to monitor such share transactions, 
employees are required to report to the Company Secretary or Managing Director whenever they deal in the 
Company’s shares.

The Directors have adopted the Best Practices Guide with regard to dealing in the Company’s shares.

On behalf of the Board,

Tien Sing Cheong					 Tan Ka Huat
Director							 Director

Singapore
20 February 2005
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RISK IDENTIFICATION, MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCESSES

Operating and business risks and associated management responses and policies may be summarised as follows:

(i)	 Customers	
A major customer, Planar, account for 43.7% (FY 2003 – 40.8%) of the Group’s revenue in FY 2004. Significant	
reductions in orders over a short period of time, from Planar will have adverse impact on our financial results.	

Over the years, the Group has aimed to decrease dependency on major customer accounts by increasing its
 	 customer base. Since it’s listing in FY 2000, we have secured 19 new customer accounts and sales to these
 	 customers account for 24.0% of FY 2004 Revenue.      

(ii)	 Availability and pricing of components	
We procure components needed in manufacturing for our customers. Some of these customers’ components 	
are available only from a single supply source. In the event that such suppliers are unable to supply the 	
customised components, we may not be able to develop an alternative source of supply in a timely manner. 	
This will delay our production and delivery to customers and have a material adverse impact on our financial 	
results.	

Furthermore, the price of electronic components will increase during periods of shortage. Any significant
 	 increase in such purchase price which cannot be absorbed by our customers will have a material adverse	

effect on our financial results.	

Working with our customers to accept alternate suppliers is an on-going effort.

(iii)	 Currency Exchange	
Our sales revenue is denominated mainly in US dollars. Our purchases of components are denominated in

 	 US dollars and Euros. The percentages of our sales and expenses denominated in foreign currencies in FY	
2004 are set out as follows :							

US Dollar	 Euro	
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________	
Sales in US dollars as a percentage of total revenue	 98%	 N / A	
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________		
Purchases in US dollars and Euros as a 

    	     percentage of total costs	 60%	 11%	
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________		

In view of the above foreign currency exposures, given the Singapore dollar as our reporting currency, we
 	 have net exposures in US$ receivables and Euro payables. Therefore, a depreciation in the US dollar relative
 	 to the Singapore dollar will generally have an unfavourable effect on our financial results. Conversely, an
 	 appreciation in Euro relative to the Singapore dollar will generally have an unfavourable effect on our financial
 	 results.	

We will continue to monitor our foreign exchange exposure and are using hedging instruments to manage
 	 our foreign exchange risk on an ongoing basis.

(iv)	 Industry competition	
We continue to focus our contract manufacturing business on the high mix / low-to-moderate volume segment

 	 of the PCBA and Box-Build markets.  Therefore,  we do not compete directly with the major contract manufacturers 	
who cater to high volume /low mix PCBA business.
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(v)	 Dependence on key management personnel	
The success of the Group do depend on the continued services of our key management personnel.	

The Group encourage succession planning to ensure that there is timely backup. Regionalisation through
 	 Vietnam will open up new sources for more trainable Engineers and Managers.

(vi)	 The Group operates regionally	
The Group until recently only has one manufacturing facility in Batam. A Vietnam facility is now in place to

 	 give our customers an alternate manufacturing site.

On behalf of the Board,

Tien Sing Cheong					 Tan Ka Huat
Director							 Director

Singapore
20 February 2005
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Directors' Report

The Directors are pleased to present their report to the members together with the audited consolidated financial 
statements of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2004 and the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2004.

Directors
The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are :-

Tien Sing Cheong (Executive Chairman)
Tan Ka Huat (Managing Director)
Gan Chee Yen
Tan Bien Chuan
Tang Martin Yue Nien

In accordance with Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, Mr Tan Bien Chuan will retire and, being 
eligible offers himself for re-election.

Arrangements to enable Directors to acquire shares and debentures
Except as described in the paragraph below, neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the 
Company a party to any arrangement whose object is to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits 
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interest in shares and debentures
The following Directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register of Directors’ 
shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Companies Act, an interest in shares of the Company 
as stated below :-					

                                                                                               	Direct interest                   	Deemed interest		
At		 At		 At		 At			

beginning		 end		 beginning		 end	
Name of Director	 of the year 		 of the year		 of the year		 of the year

CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited				
Ordinary shares of $0.05 each

Tien Sing Cheong	 31,453,600		 33,807,600		 –		 –   
Tan Ka Huat	 12,667,360		 15,021,360		 –		 –   
Gan Chee Yen	 475,200		 475,200		 –		 –   
Tan Bien Chuan	 158,400		 1,108,800		 –		 –   
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 158,400		 158,400		 –	                      –
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Directors’ interest in shares and debentures (cont’d)					

                                                                                               	Direct interest                   	Deemed interest		
At		 At		 At		 At			

beginning		 end		 beginning		 end	
Name of Director	 of the year 		 of the year		 of the year		 of the year

CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited		

Share options of $0.1803 each		
exercisable from 5.6.2002 to 5.6.2005

Tien Sing Cheong	 792,000		 -		 -		 -
Tan Ka Huat	 792,000		 -		 -		 -
Gan Chee Yen	 475,200		 475,200		 -		 -
Tan Bien Chuan	 475,200		 -		 -		 -
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 475,200		 475,200		 -		 -		

Share options of $0.1490 each		
exercisable from 2.2.2003 to 2.2.2006

Tien Sing Cheong	 792,000		 -		 -		 -
Tan Ka Huat	 792,000		 -		 -		 -
Gan Chee Yen	 -		 -		 -		 -
Tan Bien Chuan	 475,200		 -		 -		 -
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 475,200		 475,200		 -		 -		

Share options of $0.1215 each		
exercisable from 18.9.2004 – 18.9.2007

Tien Sing Cheong	 770,000		 -		 -		 -
Tan Ka Huat	 770,000		 -		 -		 -
Gan Chee Yen	 440,000		 440,000		 -		 -
Tan Bien Chuan	 440,000		 440,000		 -		 -
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 440,000		 440,000		 -		 -		

Share options of $0.1236 each		
exercisable from 13.2.2005 – 13.2.2008

Tien Sing Cheong	 660,000		 660,000		 -		 -
Tan Ka Huat	 660,000		 660,000		 -		 -
Gan Chee Yen	 330,000		 330,000		 -		 -
Tan Bien Chuan	 330,000		 330,000		 -		 -
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 330,000		 330,000		 -		 -		

Share options of $0.1578 each		
exercisable from 7.7.2005 – 7.7.2008

Tien Sing Cheong	 220,000		 220,000		 -		 -
Tan Ka Huat	 220,000		 220,000		 -		 -
Gan Chee Yen	 132,000		 132,000		 -		 -
Tan Bien Chuan	 132,000		 132,000		 -		 -
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 132,000		 132,000		 -		 -
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Directors’ interest in shares and debentures (cont’d)

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests between the end of the financial year and 21 January 
2005.

By virtue of Section 7 of the Companies Act, Tien Sing Cheong and Tan Ka Huat are deemed to have interests in 
shares of the other subsidiaries of the Company, all of which are wholly-owned.

Except as disclosed in this report, no Director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, 
share options, warrants or debentures of the Company either at the beginning of the financial year, or at the end 
of the financial year.

Directors’ contractual benefits
Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the 
Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a 
related corporation with the Director, or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which 
the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Options
The CEI Contract Manufacturing Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“CEI ESOS”) is administered by the following 
members :

Tan Bien Chuan	 (Chairman and Independent Director)
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 (Independent Director)
Gan Chee Yen	 (Non-executive Director)
Tien Sing Cheong	 (Executive Chairman)
Tan Ka Huat	 (Managing Director)

Each share option entitles the employees of the Company to subscribe for one new ordinary share of $0.05 each 
in the Company.  The options are granted in consideration of $1 per option for all the shares in respect of which 
the option is granted.  The options may be exercised after two years but not later than 5 years from the date the 
share option was granted.  The shares under option may be exercised in full or in blocks of 1,000 shares or a multiple 
thereof on the payment of the exercise price.  The employees to whom the options have been granted do not have 
the right to participate, by virtue of the options, in a share issue of any other company.  Options granted are 
cancellable when the option holder ceases to be in office or under full-time employment of the Company subject 
to certain exceptions at the discretion of the Company.
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Options (cont’d)

(A)	Options granted under CEI ESOS :-

(i)	 The following options were granted under the CEI ESOS :-								

Number of shares		 			
Exercisable 	 granted		 Exercise	

Date of grant		 period	 under options		 option price ($)	

5 June 2000		 5.6.2002 – 5.6.2005	 8,360,440		 $0.1803	

2 February 2001		 2.2.2003 – 2.2.2006	 6,301,856		 $0.1490	

18 September 2002		 18.9.2004 – 18.9.2007	 9,207,000		 $0.1215	

13 February 2003		 13.2.2005 – 13.2.2008	 8,525,000		 $0.1236	

 7 July 2003		 7.7.2005 – 7.7.2008	 2,607,000		 $0.1578

(ii)	The options granted to the Directors  of the Company under CEI ESOS are as follows :-		

Option granted	 Aggregate options granted	 Aggregate options exercised				
 during the	 since commencement of	 since commencement of	 Aggregate options

Name of	 financial year	 scheme to end of the	 scheme to end of the	 outstanding as at end
participant	  under review	 financial year	 financial year	 of financial year

Tien Sing Cheong	 –	 3,234,000	 2,354,000	 880,000

Tan Ka Huat	 –	 3,234,000	 2,354,000	 880,000

Gan Chee Yen	 –	 1,809,200	 432,000	 1,377,200

Tan Bien Chuan	 –	 1,852,400	 950,400	 902,000

Tang Martin Yue Nien	 –	 1,852,400	 –	 1,852,400	

There are no participants who are controlling shareholders of the Company. Except for Tien Sing Cheong and 	
Tan Ka Huat, no participants have received 5% or more of the total number of options available under CEI ESOS.

(B)	Issue of shares under option :-	
12,058,512 options have been exercised as at the date of this report.

(C)	Unissued shares under options :-	
Details of the options to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.05 each of the Company to employees are as follows:						

Balance			 Balance	 Number of	 Exercise			
Date of	 as at	 Options	 Options	 as at 	 holders as at	 Price	 Exercisable		
grant	 1.1.2004	 exercised	 cancelled	 31.12.2004	 31.12.2004	 $	 period	

5.6.2000	 8,360,440	 4,128,632	 553,704	 3,678,104	 49	 0.1803	 5.6.2002 – 5.6.2005

2.2.2001	 6,301,856	 4,387,480	 440	 1,913,936	 36	 0.1490	 2.2.2003 – 2.2.2006

18.9.2002	 9,207,000	 3,542,400	 156,200	 5,508,400	 52	 0.1215	 18.9.2004 – 18.9.2007

13.2.2003	 8,525,000	 –	 605,000	 7,920,000	 83	 0.1236	 13.2.2005 – 13.2.2008	

7.7.2003	 2,607,000	 –	 176,000	 2,431,000	 27	 0.1578	 7.7.2005 – 7.7.2008
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprises three members, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors. 
The majority of the members including the Chairman, are independent.  The members of the Audit Committee in 
office at the date of this report are :-

Tan Bien Chuan	 (Chairman and Independent Director)
Tang Martin Yue Nien	 (Independent Director)
Gan Chee Yen	

The financial statements, accounting policies and system of internal accounting controls are the responsibility of 
the Board of Directors acting through the Audit Committee.  The Audit Committee met as necessary and performed 
the functions specified in the Singapore Companies Act.  In performing its function, the Audit Committee reviewed 
the overall scope of the external audit.  It met with the Company’s external auditors to discuss the results of their 
examination and their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal accounting controls.  The Audit Committee 
also reviewed the assistance given by the Company’s officers to the auditors.  The financial statements and the 
auditors’ report thereon were reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to their submission to the Directors of the 
Company for adoption.

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the requirements for approval and disclosure of the interested 
persons transactions, reviewed the procedures set up by the Group and the Company to identify and report and 
where necessary, seek approval for interested persons transactions and reviewed interested persons transactions.

The Audit Committee recommends to the Board of Directors that the auditors, Ernst & Young, be nominated for 
reappointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors

Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment as auditors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Tien Sing Cheong					 Tan Ka Huat
Director							 Director

Singapore
20 February 2005
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We, Tien Sing Cheong and Tan Ka Huat, being two of the Directors of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited, do hereby 
state that, in the opinion of the Directors :

(a) 	 the accompanying balance sheets, consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of changes 
in equity and consolidated cash flow statement together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2004 and of the results	
of the business and changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and

(b) 	 at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Tien Sing Cheong					 Tan Ka Huat
Director							 Director

Singapore
20 February 2005

Statement by the Directors



24

To the Members of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited (the Company) and 
its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2004, set out on pages 25 to 55.  These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Directors.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation.  
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, 

(a)	 the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company are properly drawn 
up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act (the Act) and Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 
December 2004 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended 
on that date; and

(b)	 the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary 
companies incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore
20 February 2005

Auditors’ Report
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			                        Group		                        Company		
Note	 2004	 2003	 2004	 2003					

$	 $	 $	 $
ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment	 4	 7,835,608	 5,498,892	 1,470,729	 1,316,386
Investments in subsidiary companies	 5	 –     	 –     	 7,623,518	 4,911,376
Interest in associated company	 6	 200,000	 1,629,474	 200,000	 1,623,700
Investment securities	 7	 1,022,883	 1,024,570	 1,022,883	 1,024,570
Deferred tax asset 	 19	 450,000	 420,000	 450,000	 420,000				

9,508,491	 8,572,936	 10,767,130	 9,296,032

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents	 8	 17,747,968	 15,090,767	 17,010,569	 14,613,520
Trade receivables	 9	 7,980,422	 5,491,451	 7,885,248	 5,443,891
Other receivables	 10	 607,061	 541,150	 156,316	 443,906
Amount owing by subsidiary 	

companies	 11	 –     	 –     	 1,659,382	 783,070
Amount owing by associated 	

company	 12	 –     	 4,830	 –     	 4,830
Amount owing by joint venture	

company, trade		 –     	 26,265	 –     	 3,096
Amounts owing by related	

companies, trade		 5,347	 5,412	 5,347	 5,412
Inventories	 13	 7,267,188	 4,413,099	 7,266,443	 4,412,257
Investment securities	 7	 –     	 4,000,000	 –     	 4,000,000						

33,607,986	 29,572,974	 33,983,305	 29,709,982	

Current Liabilities
Trade payables and accruals		 10,029,737	 8,662,993	 9,481,387	 8,067,829
Amount owing to subsidiary	

company	 11	 –     	 –     	 6,008,317	 5,360,492
Amount owing to related	

company, trade		 –     	 133,879	 –     	 133,879
Amount owing to joint venture company	 14	 –     	 154,259	 –     	 –   
Provision for taxation		 2,709,757	 1,947,690	 1,896,757	 1,475,367
Other liabilities	 15	 1,526,967	 1,282,729	 1,466,745	 1,282,729			

14,266,461	 12,181,550	 18,853,206	 16,320,296

Net Current Assets		 19,341,525	 17,391,424	 15,130,099	 13,389,686

Net Assets		 28,850,016	 25,964,360	 25,897,229	 22,685,718

EQUITY
Share capital	 16	 15,721,928	 15,119,003	 15,721,928	 15,119,003
Share premium		 1,591,813	 366,210	 1,591,813	 366,210
Revenue reserve		 11,536,275	 10,479,147	 8,583,488	 7,200,505

Total Equity		 28,850,016	 25,964,360	 25,897,229	 22,685,718

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 30 to 55 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2004
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		Group				
                                      Note	 2004	 2003					

$	 $

Revenue	 17	 62,450,800	 40,977,749

Cost of sales		 (43,859,155)	 (25,715,186)

Gross profit		 18,591,645	 15,262,563

Other income		 295,353	 282,067
Distribution costs		 (431,858)	 (402,934)
Administrative costs		 (9,317,819)	 (8,097,759)
Sales & marketing costs		 (1,333,243)	 (1,114,137)
Other operating income/ (costs)		 90,611	 (33,067)

Profit from operations		 7,894,689	 5,896,733
Share of results of associated company		 (175,848)	 (489,233)

Profit from operations before taxation	 18	 7,718,841	 5,407,500
Taxation	 19	 (2,030,225)	 (1,945,500)

Profit after taxation		 5,688,616	 3,462,000
Revenue reserve brought forward		 10,479,147	 10,458,535						

16,167,763	 13,920,535

Dividends paid, net of tax	 20	 (4,631,488)	 (3,441,388)

Revenue reserve carried forward		 11,536,275	 10,479,147

Basic earnings per share (cents)	 21	 1.85	 1.15

Diluted earnings per share (cents)	 21	 1.81	 1.12

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 30 to 55 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2004
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2004

Share capital		                                  Group	                               	                 No. of shares
Issued and fully paid (1) :-	 Note	 2004	 2003	 2004	 2003			

$	 $	

Balance at beginning of year		 15,119,003	 13,547,600	 302,380,050	 270,952,000

Issuance of 12,058,512 (2003 : 4,004,912) 	
ordinary shares of $0.05 each for cash 	
at premium of $0.1016 per share		 602,925	 200,246	 12,058,512	 4,004,912

Bonus issuance in 2003	
of 27,423,138 ordinary shares of

 	 $0.05 each through capitalisation 	
of share premium account		 –	 1,371,157	 –	 27,423,138

Balance at end of year		 15,721,928	 15,119,003	 314,438,562	 302,380,050

Share premium

Balance at beginning of year		 366,210	 1,249,669

Issuance of 12,058,512 (2003 : 4,004,912) 	
ordinary shares of $0.05 each at 	
premium of $0.1016 per share		 1,225,603	 487,698

Bonus issuance in 2003 of 27,423,138 	
ordinary shares of $0.05 each		 –	 (1,371,157)

Balance at end of year		 1,591,813	 366,210

Revenue reserve

Balance at beginning of year		 10,479,147	 10,458,535
Net profit for the year		 5,688,616	 3,462,000
Dividends paid on ordinary shares	 20	 (4,631,488)	 (3,441,388)

Balance at end of year		 11,536,275	 10,479,147

Total equity and shares outstanding		 28,850,016	 25,964,360	 314,438,562	 302,380,050

(1)	 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the company.  All ordinary shares 			
carry one vote per share without restriction.

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 30 to 55 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2004

				Group					
2004		 2003			

$	 $

Cash flows from operating activities :

Profit from operations before taxation	 7,718,841	 5,407,500

Adjustments for :	
Depreciation of fixed assets	 1,252,523	 1,115,084

  	 Interest income	 (241,920)	 (110,420)
  	 Negative goodwill arising on consolidation	 (194,000)	 –   
  	 Impairment of goodwill	 100,000	 –   
  	 Gain on sale of fixed assets	 (35,462)	 (149,713)
  	 Share of results of associated company 	 175,848	 489,233

Operating income before reinvestment in working capital	 8,775,830	 6,751,684
Increase in receivables	 (2,497,102)	 (1,556,485)
Increase in inventories	 (2,854,089)	 (3,087,039)
Increase in creditors	 1,520,530	 874,070
(Increase)/decrease in associated company, joint venture	

and related companies balances	 (257,504)	 391,174

Cash generated from operations	 4,687,665	 3,373,404
Interest received	 241,920	 110,420
Income tax paid	 (1,298,158)	 (935,863)

Net cash flows provided by operating activities	 3,631,427	 2,547,961

Cash flows from investing activities : 
Purchase of fixed assets	 (1,113,156)	 (1,243,471)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets	 199,431	 203,423
Purchase of unquoted debt securities	 –   	 (5,024,570)
Proceeds from redemption of unquoted debt securities	 4,001,687	 –   
Investment in associated company	 (300,000)	 –   
Acquisition of subsidiary company, net of cash acquired (1)	 (959,228)	 –   

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) investing activities	 1,828,734	 (6,064,618)

Cash flows from financing activities :
Dividends paid on ordinary shares	 (4,631,488)	 (3,441,388)
Net proceeds from issue of share capital	 1,828,528	 687,944

Net cash flows used in financing activities	 (2,802,960)	 (2,753,444)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	 2,657,201	 (6,270,101)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (note 8)	 15,090,767	 21,360,868

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (note 8)	 17,747,968	 15,090,767

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 30 to 55 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(1)	 On 24 June 2004, the Company acquired the remaining 50% shareholdings of 1,138,850 ordinary shares and 	
1,138,850 redeemable preference shares in Tangera Pte Ltd for a total consideration of $1,260,192.  As a result, 	
Tangera Pte Ltd ceased to be an associated company and became a wholly owned subsidiary.  The acquisition 	
of a subsidiary company has been shown in the above statement of cash flows as a single item.  The effect 	
of the individual assets and liabilities are set out as below :-			

$

Fixed assets	 2,640,051
Trade debtors	 44,550
Other debtors	 13,230
Cash and bank balances	 300,964
Other creditors	 (60,221)
Accruals	 (30,230)

Fair value of net assets acquired	 2,908,344
Interest in associated company’s net assets as at 24.6.04	 (1,454,152)
Negative goodwill arising on consolidation	 (194,000)

Consideration paid in cash	 1,260,192
Less : cash and bank balances	 (300,964)

Cash and cash equivalent, net of cash acquired/released	 959,228

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 30 to 55 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2004
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004

1.	 Corporate information	

The financial statements of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited for the year ended 31 December 2004 were	
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 20 February 2005.	

CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited, domiciled in Singapore, is a limited liability company incorporated in 
Singapore on 28 August 1999.	

The registered office of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited is located at 10 Collyer Quay, #19-08 Ocean Building, 
Singapore 049315.	

The principal activities of the Group and the Company are those of contract manufacturing services. Such 
services include printed circuit board assemblies, box-build assemblies, prototype assemblies and value add 
engineering works such as circuit layout and functional design.	

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.	

Related companies in the financial statements refer to companies under Singapore Technologies Group.	

The Group has customers in the United States, Europe and Asia Pacific.  The Group operates in three countries 
and the Group and Company employed 616 and 89 (2003 : 571 and 83) as of 31 December 2004, respectively.

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies	

(a)	 Basis of preparation		
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 	
(FRS) as required by the Companies Act. 		

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.  The accounting policies have been 	
consistently applied by the Company and, except for the changes in accounting policies discussed more 	
fully below, are consistent with those used in the previous financial year.		

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (SGD or $).	

(b)	 Changes in accounting policies		
In 2004, the Group has early adopted the following standards, which are effective for financial years

 		 beginning on or after 1 July 2004.		

• FRS 103, Business Combination		
• Revised FRS 36, Impairment of Assets		
• Revised FRS 38, Intangible Assets	

The adoption of FRS 103, revised FRS 36 and revised FRS 38 requires a change in the accounting treatment 
for goodwill.  FRS 103 requires goodwill acquired in a business combination to be measured at cost less 
any accumulated impairment losses.  Goodwill shall no longer be amortised, instead, impairment is tested 
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be 
impaired. Negative goodwill is taken to income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)	

(c)	 Principles of consolidation		
The accounting year of the Company and its subsidiary companies ends on 31 December and the consolidated 
accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary companies.  The results of subsidiary 
companies acquired or disposed during the year are included in or excluded from the respective date of 
acquisition or disposal as applicable.		

Assets, liabilities and results of overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Singapore dollars on the 
basis outlined in paragraph (g) below.	

(d)	 Investments in subsidiary companies		
Shares in subsidiary companies are stated at cost unless, in the opinion of the Directors, there has 
been impairment, in which case they are written down to a valuation as determined by the Directors.	

(e)	 Interests in associated company		
An associated company is defined as a company, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has a long-
term interest of not less than 20% nor more than 50% of the equity and in whose financial and operating 
policy decisions the Group exercises significant influence.		

The Group’s investment in associated company is recorded at cost and adjusted to recognise the Group’s 
share of the net assets of the associated company at the date of acquisition.		

The Group’s share of the results of associated company is included in the consolidated profit and loss 
account.  The Group’s share of the post-acquisition reserves of associated company is included in the 
investments in the consolidated balance sheet.		

Investment cost in associated company is stated in the Company’s financial statements at cost and provision 
is made for permanent impairment in value.		

Dividend income is accrued on the basis of dividends declared by the investee company up to the date of 
the Directors’ report.	

(f)	 Interest in joint venture company		
The Group’s interest in jointly controlled entity is accounted for by proportionate consolidation which 
recognises a proportionate share of the joint venture’s assets, liabilities, income and expenses with similar 
items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis.  An assessment of interest in joint 
venture is made when there are indications that the assets have been impaired or the impairment losses 
recognised in prior years no longer exist.	

(g)	 Foreign currency translation		
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in SGD and recorded at exchange rates approximating 
those ruling at the transaction dates.  Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are measured using 
the exchange rates ruling at balance sheet date.  Non-monetary assets and liabilities are measured using 
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates or, in the case of items carried at fair value, the exchange 
rates that existed when the values were determined.  All resultant exchange differences are recognised in 
the profit and loss account.		

Assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated into SGD equivalents at exchange rates ruling at 
balance sheet date.  Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the year, which 
approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.  All resultant exchange differences are 
taken directly to equity.  On disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated exchange differences are recognised 
in the profit and loss account as a component of the gain or loss on disposal.		

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the acquiring entity and are recorded at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)	

(h)	 Property, plant and equipment		
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in 
value.  All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.		

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and 
non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 
condition and location for its intended use, any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 
purchase price.  Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, 
such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the profit and loss account in 
the period in which the costs are incurred.  In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the 
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the 
use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, 		
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of property, plant and equipment.		

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows :-		

Leasehold improvements	 -	 3 - 5 years		
Plant and machinery	 -	 3 - 5 years		
Fixed tools and gauges	 -	 5 years		
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment	 -	 5 years		
Motor vehicles	 -	 5 - 6 years		
Computer equipment	 -	 2 years		

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that the method and period of 
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property,  plant 
and equipment.	

(i)	 Inventories		
Inventories are stated at the lower of costs (determined principally on standard costs which approximate 
the actual costs) and net realisable value.  In arriving at net realisable value, due allowance is made for all 
obsolete and slow-moving items.		

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include cost of direct materials, labour and an appropriate 
portion of fixed and variable factory overheads.	

(j)	 Trade and other receivables		
Trade receivables, which generally have been granted on between 30 and 60 days credit terms, are recognised 
and carried at original invoice amount less impairment losses on any uncollectible amounts.		

Receivables from related parties are recognised and carried at cost less impairment losses on any uncollectible 
items.		

Bills of exchange and promissory notes, which are held to maturity, are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method.  Those that do not have a fixed maturity are carried at cost.	

(k)	 Cash and cash equivalents		
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank, demand deposits and short-term, highly 
liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value.		

Short-term deposits, which are held to maturity, are carried at amortised cost.		

For the purposes of the Cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)	

(l)	 Trade and other payables		
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable which are normally settled on 30-90 day terms, are carried 
at cost.		

Payables to related companies and parties are carried at cost.	

(m)	 Provisions		
Provisions are recognised when the Group or Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.	

(n)	 Employee benefits		
Defined contribution plan		
As required by law, the Company makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident 
Fund (CPF).  CPF contributions are recognised as compensation expense in the same period as the employment 
that gives rise to the contribution.		

Equity compensation benefits		
The Company has an employee share incentive plan for the granting of non-transferable options.  There 		
are no charges to profit and loss account upon the grant or exercise of fixed options.	

(o)	 Revenue recognition		
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 
and the revenue can be reliably measured.  The following specific recognition criteria must also be met 
before the revenue is recognised.		

Sales of goods		
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to 
the buyer.		

Interest		
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues unless collectibility is in doubt.	

(p)	 Income taxes		
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance 
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled based 
on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.		

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.		

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax 
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can 
be utilised.

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)	

(p)	 Income taxes (cont’d)		
At each balance sheet date, the Group re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets and the carrying amount 
of deferred tax assets.  The Group recognises a previously unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  The 
Group conversely reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised.		

Deferred tax are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, 
in the same or a different period, directly to equity.	

(q)	 Goodwill		
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination 
over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. 
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.  Goodwill 
on acquisitions is not amortised.  Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.		

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected 
to benefit from the combination’s synergies.  Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit, to which the goodwill relates.  Where recoverable amount of the cash-generating 
unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.  Where goodwill forms part of a 
cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit are disposed of, the goodwill associated with 
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain 
or loss on disposal of the operation.  Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured on the basis 
of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.	

(r)	 Impairment		

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated.  For intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable 
amount is estimated at each balance sheet date.		

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit		
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.		

Calculation of recoverable amount		
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,		
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.



35

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)		

(r)	 Impairment (cont’d)		

Reversal of impairment loss		
An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if there has been a change in estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount.  A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit 
shall be allocated to the assets of the unit, except for goodwill, pro-rata with the carrying amounts of those 
assets.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised.  Reversals of impairment are recognised in the profit and loss account.		

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.	

(s)	 Segment reporting		
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s geographical segments.  The primary format, 
geographical segments, is based on the location of the Group’s customers.		

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that 
can be allocated on a reasonable basis.  Unallocated items mainly comprise income-earning assets 
and revenue, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and expenses.		

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are 
expected to be used for more than one period.		

Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies of the Group as described in Note 2.  The Group 
generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties at 
current market price.	

(t)	 Investment securities		
Investment securities, which are intended to be held to maturity, are measured at amortised cost.  Amortised 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any write-down for 
impairment, over the period to maturity.  For investments carried at amortised cost, any gain or loss is 
recognised in the profit and loss account when the investment is derecognised or impaired, as well as 
through the amortisation process.	

(u)	 Financial instruments		
Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, 
trade and other debtors and creditors and long-term investments.  The accounting policies on recognition 
and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies found in Note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004

3.	 Subsidiary, associated and joint venture companies	

Details of the subsidiary, associated and joint venture companies as at 31 December 2004 are :-	

Name of company	 Principal activities	                           Cost		                   Percentage of	
(Country of incorporation)	 (Place of business)	                     		                 equity held 			

2004	 2003	 2004	 2003			
$	 $	 %	 %	

Subsidiary companies	
Held by the Company	

*** PT Surya	 Printed circuit board	 2,999,035	 2,999,035	 100	 100
 		 Teknologi Batam	 assembly and contract		

(Indonesia)	 manufacturing			
(Indonesia)	

* 	 CEI International	 Investment holding	 2,494,341	 2,494,341	 100	 100			
Investments Pte 	 (Singapore)	

   	 Ltd (Singapore)	

* # 	Tangera Pte Ltd	 Holding of	 3,539,365	 –	 100	 – 		
(Singapore)	 industrial property			

(Singapore)

      				 9,032,741	 5,493,376	

Held through subsidiary company	

**	 CEI International	 Printed circuit board	  2,021,667	 2,021,667	 100	 100		
Investments (VN) 	 assembly and contract		
Ltd (Vietnam)	 manufacturing			

(Vietnam)		

Associated company	
Held by the Company	

*	 Tangera Pte Ltd	 Holding of industrial	 _	 2,277,700	 _	 50		
(Singapore)	 property			

(Singapore)	

@	 Santec	 Precision engineering,	 300,000	 –	 23	 – 		
Corporation	 stamping and tool and 		
Pte Ltd	 die making		
(Singapore)	 (People’s Republic of China)	

Joint venture company	
Held through subsidiary company	

*	 CEI-TOYO 	 Contract manufacturing	 800,000	 800,000	 53.33	 53.33		
Singapore Pte Ltd	 services		
(Singapore)	 (Singapore)	

*	 Audited by Ernst & Young, Singapore.   	
**	 Audited by member firm of Ernst & Young International in Vietnam.	
***	Audited by Kantor Akuntan Publik Drs. Sukimto Sjamsuli.	
#	 Tangera Pte Ltd became a wholly-owned subsidiary on 24 June 2004.	
@	 Santec Corporation Pte Ltd is an associated company acquired in June 2004.

The effect of the acquisition of Tangera Pte Ltd on the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2004 and its 
results for the year is shown below :				

$’000	
Total assets at 31 December 2004	 2,918	
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004	 91	
Contributions to the Group for the period :		

- turnover	 31		
- loss before and after tax	 81

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the reporting year, the revenue and profit after taxation for the 
Group would have been approximately $62,482,000 and $5,507,000 respectively.
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4.	 Property, plant and equipment						

Office		
*Leasehold				 furniture,			

land &	 Building	 Plant and	 Motor	 fitting and	 Computer		
Group	 buildings	 improvement	 machinery	 vehicles	 equipment	 equipment	 Renovation	 Total		

$	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	

Cost		
As at 1 January 2004	 3,765,930	 1,056,983	 5,067,136	 1,577,661	 219,520	 723,079	 370,697	 12,781,006		
Due to acquisition 		
   of a subsidiary	 2,556,231	 –	 –	 –	 8,148	 –     	 75,672	 2,640,051		
Additions	 14,255	 –	 504,268	 80,000	 32,360	 482,273	 –     	 1,113,156		
Disposal/Write-off	 –	 –	 (94,667)	 (163,000)	 (1,120)	 (29,325)	 –     	 (288,112)		

As at 31 December 2004	 6,336,416	 1,056,983	 5,476,737	 1,494,661	 258,908	 1,176,027	 446,369	 16,246,101	

Accumulated depreciation		
As at 1 January 2004	 821,939	 814,804	 4,114,342	 555,478	 148,408	 528,236	 298,907	 7,282,114		
Charge for the year	 232,352	 –	 356,726	 276,862	 28,205	 267,904	 90,474	 1,252,523		
Disposal/Write-off	 – 	 –	 (17,978)	 (76,941)	 (1,025)	 (28,200)	 –	 (124,144)		

As at 31 December 2004	 1,054,291	 814,804	 4,453,090	 755,399	 175,588	 767,940	 389,381	 8,410,493	

Charge for 2003	 163,430	 –	 381,572	 268,405	 32,496	 148,773	 120,408	 1,115,084			

Net book value		
As at 31 December 2004	 5,282,125	 242,179	 1,023,647	 739,262	 83,320	 408,087	 56,988	 7,835,608		

As at 31 December 2003	 2,943,991	 242,179	 952,794	 1,022,183	 71,112	 194,843	 71,790	 5,498,892
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4.	 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)				

Office				
furniture,			

Plant and	 Motor	 fitting and	 Computer		
Company	 machinery	 vehicles	 equipment	 equipment	 Renovation	 Total		

$	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	

Cost		
As at 1 January 2004	 399,034	 1,512,456	 145,517	 539,208	 369,897	 2,966,112		
Additions	 326,995	 80,000	 1,800	 469,443	 –	 878,238		
Disposal/Write-off	 –	 (163,000)	 (470)	 (522)	 –	 (163,992)		

As at 31 December 2004	 726,029	 1,429,456	 146,847	 1,008,129	 369,897	 3,680,358	

Accumulated depreciation		
As at 1 January 2004	 380,497	 490,472	 87,254	 393,305	 298,198	 1,649,726		
Charge for the year	 43,411	 276,630	 24,429	 223,039	 69,711	 637,220		
Disposal/Write-off	 –	 (76,941)	 (376)	 –	 –	 (77,317)			

As at 31 December 2004	 423,908	 690,161	 111,307	 616,344	 367,909	 2,209,629	

Charge for 2003	 124,527	 268,267	 29,999	 104,096	 119,919	 646,808	

Net book value		
As at 31 December 2004	 302,121	 739,295	 35,540	 391,785	 1,988	 1,470,729		

As at 31 December 2003	 18,537	 1,021,984	 58,263	 145,903	 71,699	 1,316,386

	* Details of leasehold land and buildings held through subsidiary companies are as follows :	

Location		 Description	 Tenure	 Land Area (sq m)	

Batamindo Industrial Park,	 Detached single-storey 	 21 April 1998 to 	
Batam, Indonesia	 factory with mezzanine floor	 18 December 2019	 5,788	

Vietnam Singapore Industrial	 Detached single-storey	 6 March 2002 to 	
Park, Binh Duong, Vietnam	 factory with mezzanine floor	 11 February 2046	 5,000	

Ang Mo Kio Industrial Park II,	 Detached three-storey	 1 March 2003 to
 	 Singapore	 factory building	 28 February 2023	 2,617
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5.	 Investments in subsidiary companies		

                                                      				 Company					
2004	 2003				

$	 $	
Unquoted ordinary shares, at cost			 9,032,741	 5,493,376	
Impairment loss			 (1,409,223)	 (582,000)		

Carrying amount after impairment loss			 7,623,518	 4,911,376	

Impairment loss is analysed as follows :-	

Balance at beginning of year			 582,000	 –     	
Provision made during the year			 173,223	 582,000	
Transfer from investment in associated company (Note 6)		 654,000	 –     	

Balance at end of year			 1,409,223	 582,000

On 24 June 2004, the Company acquired the remaining shares of Tangera Pte Ltd.  As a result, Tangera Pte Ltd
ceased to be an associated company and became a wholly-owned subsidiary.

6.	 Interest in associated company		

                                                      	Group			 Company		
2004	 2003	 2004	 2003		

$	 $	 $	 $	
Unquoted ordinary shares, at cost	 300,000	 1,138,850	 300,000	 1,138,850		

Convertible redeemable 		
preference shares	 –	 1,138,850	 –     	 1,138,850	

Share of post-acquisition reserves	 –	 (648,226)	 –     	 –     	

Impairment loss	 –	 –	 –     	 (654,000)	

Impairment of goodwill#	 (100,000)	 –	 (100,000)	 –	

Carrying amount	 200,000	 1,629,474	 200,000	 1,623,700		

Impairment loss is analysed as follows :-	

Balance at beginning of year			 654,000	 –     	
Provision made during the year			 –	 654,000	
Transfer to investment in subsidiary 		

company (Note 5)			 (654,000)	 –     	

Balance at end of year			 –	 654,000	

Goodwill arising from acquisition						
of Santec Corporation Pte Ltd	 100,000	 –	 –     	 –		

#Impairment loss	 (100,000)	 –	 –     	 –	

Carrying amount	 –	 –	 –     	 –
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7.	 Investment securities		

                                                      	Group			 Company		
2004	 2003	 2004	 2003		

$	 $	 $	 $	
Non-current :	
Unquoted debt securities		

(at amortised cost)	 1,022,883	 1,024,570	 1,022,883	 1,024,570	

Current :	
Unquoted debt securities 		

(at cost)	 –	 4,000,000	 –	 4,000,000		

The current debt securities were matured during the year and the non-current debt securities are intended to 	
be held to maturity.

8.	 Cash and cash equivalents		

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following 	
balance sheet amounts :					

Group			 Company		
2004		 2003	 2004		 2003		

$		 $	 $		 $	
Cash on hand	 9,288	 9,240	 6,650	 7,422	
Cash at bank	 4,567,948	 1,868,995	 4,181,498	 1,634,732	
Fixed deposits	 13,170,732	 13,212,532	 12,822,421	 12,971,366		

17,747,968	 15,090,767	 17,010,569	 14,613,520	

The fixed deposits bear interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 1.5% (2003 : 0.5% to 1.0%) per annum, which are 	
also the effective interest rates.
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9.	 Trade receivables				
                                 		 Group		

 			 2004		 2003					
$		 $	

Trade receivables are stated after deducting		
provision for doubtful debts of :			 52,976	 352,737			

Balance at beginning of year			 352,737	 502,737	
Provision written back during the year (Note 18)		 (299,761)	 (150,000)	

Balance at end of year			 52,976	 352,737

10.	 Other receivables			

          Group			          Company		
         2004		          2003	          2004		          2003		

         $		          $	          $		          $	
Deposits	 452,849	 144,660	 55,340	 49,340	
Prepayments	 154,212	 396,490	 100,976	 394,566				

607,061	 541,150	 156,316	 443,906

11.	 Amount owing by/to a subsidiary company	

Amount owing by a subsidiary company	

The amount owing by a subsidiary company is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable 	
on demand.	

Amount owing to a subsidiary company		
                 		                                Company				

       2004	        2003				
       $	        $	

Trade			 5,162,283	 4,606,179	
Non-trade			 846,034	 754,313				

6,008,317	 5,360,492		

The non-trade balance owing to a subsidiary company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004
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12.	 Amount owing by/to associated company	

The amounts owing by/to associated company are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
 	 on demand.

13.	 Inventories		
 Group		                 Company		

         2004	          2003	          2004	          2003		
         $	          $	          $	          $	

Finished products, at cost	 1,135,186	 479,615	 1,135,186	 479,615	
Work-in-progress, at cost	 467,472	 390,836	 467,472	 390,836	
Raw materials, at cost	 5,650,590	 3,528,429	 5,649,845	 3,527,587	
Raw materials, at net 		

realisable value	 13,940	 14,219	 13,940	 14,219	

Total inventories at lower of 		
cost and net realisable value	 7,267,188	 4,413,099	 7,266,443	 4,412,257			

                                                      		                                                           	Group and Company				
  		         2004	           2003								

        $	          $	
Inventories are stated after deducting		

provision for inventory obsolescence of :			 2,275,656	 1,750,951		

Balance at beginning of year			 1,750,951	 2,401,211	
Provision written back during the year		

(Note 18)			 (31,011)	 (780,000)	
Provision made during the year (Note 18)			 555,716	 129,740	

Balance at end of year			 2,275,656	 1,750,951

14.	 Amount owing to joint venture company	

The amount owing to joint venture company in 2003 was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and 		
was repaid during the year.
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15.	 Other liabilities		

 Group		                 Company		
         2004	          2003	          2004	          2003		

         $	          $	          $	          $	
Deposits by customers	 250,457	 200,808	 190,235	 200,808	
Advanced billings to customers	 1,276,510	 1,081,921	 1,276,510	 1,081,921			

1,526,967	 1,282,729	 1,466,745	 1,282,729

16.	 Share capital					
                              Company						

2004	 2003					
$	 $	

Authorised :	
Balance at beginning and end of year		

1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each		 50,000,000	 50,000,000		

Issued and fully paid :	
At beginning of year		

302,380,050 (2003 : 270,952,000) 		
ordinary shares of $0.05 each			 15,119,003	 13,547,600	

Issuance in 2003 of 27,423,138 ordinary 		
shares of $0.05 each through capitalisation 		
of share premium account			 –     	 1,371,157	

Issuance of 12,058,512 (2003 : 4,004,912) 		
ordinary shares of $0.05 each for cash		
at premium of $0.1016 per share			 602,925	 200,246	

Balance at end of year		
314,438,562 (2003 : 302,380,050) 		
ordinary shares of $0.05 each			 15,721,928	 15,119,003
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17.	 Revenue	

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold and services provided.  In respect of the Group, intra-	
group transactions are excluded.		

                                   	                                 		                                Group					
2004	 2003					

$	 $	
Revenue is analysed as follows :-	
-  External customers			 59,548,124	 39,194,611		
-  Related companies			 2,902,676	 1,783,138								

62,450,800	 40,977,749

18.	 Profit from operations	 			

                                                                                                                                                     Group					
2004	 2003			

$	 $	

This is stated after charging/(crediting) the following :-	

Auditors’ remuneration		
Auditors of Company			

-  current year audit	 64,000	 58,230			
-  non-audit services		

     - tax compliance services	 9,800	 25,382		
Other auditors			

-  current year audit	 12,000	 12,000			
-  non-audit services			
   - internal audit	 23,400	 15,000			
   - tax services	 – 	 14,000	

Depreciation of fixed assets	 1,252,523	 1,115,084	
Directors’ remuneration		

-  Central Provident Fund	 19,690	 26,000		
-  Salaries, wages, bonuses and other costs	 891,694	 901,294	

Provision for goodwill impairment of an associated company	 100,000	 –   	
Negative goodwill arising on consolidation	 (194,000)	 –   

  	 Write-back of doubtful debts	 (299,761)	 (150,000)	
Write-back of provision made for stock obsolescence	 (31,011)	 (780,000)	
Provision for inventory obsolescence	 555,716	 129,740	
Interest income		

-  fixed deposits	 (241,920)	 (110,420)	
Realised exchange loss	 88,847	 13,876	
Unrealised exchange loss	 19,005	 17,206	
Gain on disposal of fixed assets	 (35,462)	 (149,713)	
Staff costs		

-  Central Provident Fund	 419,854	 463,908		
-  Salaries, wages, bonuses and other costs	 7,556,842	 6,480,631

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2004
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19.	 Income tax		

Taxation in respect of profit for the year :-  			

                                                                                                                                                     Group					
2004	 2003			

$	 $		

Group’s taxation		
-  current	 2,232,648	 1,075,500		
-  deferred	 (30,000)	 353,780			

2,202,648	 1,429,280	

Share of associated company’s taxation		
-  current	 2,781	 –     		
-  deferred	 –	 (8,000)	

Current year expense	 2,205,429	 1,421,280	

(Over)/under provision in prior year		
-  Group	 (175,204)	 522,923		
-  Associated company	 – 	 1,297			

2,030,225	     1,945,500	

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax	
rate for the year ended 31 December was as follows :			

                                                                                                                                                     Group					
2004	 2003			

$	 $	

Profit before tax	 7,718,841	 5,407,500	
Income tax at statutory tax rate of 20% (2003 : 22%)	 1,543,768	 1,189,650	
Adjustments :		

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes	 450,596	 344,615		
Income not subjected to tax	 –     	 (48,225)		
Different effective tax rates of other countries	 149,020	 70,910		
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised	 –     	 (132,462)		
Tax effect of change in statutory tax rate	 36,332	 –     		
Tax effect of partial tax exemption	 (10,500)	 (13,900)		
Others	 33,432	 18,692		

Current taxation charge	 2,202,648	 1,429,280
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19.	 Income tax (cont’d)	

As at 31 December 2004, the Group does not have tax losses (2003 : $nil) that are available for set-off 	against future 	
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.	

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to the shareholders 	
of the Company.	

Deferred tax asset
                                                                                                                                                         Group and Company					

               2004	      2003			
               $	      $	

Deferred tax liabilities				

Excess of net book value over tax written			
down value of property, plant and equipment	 106,340	 63,219		

Unrealised exchange gain	 –	 7,339	

Gross deferred tax liabilities	 106,340	 70,558	

Deferred tax assets		

Provision for stock obsolescence	 455,131	 385,209		
Provision for doubtful debts	 10,595	 77,655		
Other deferred tax assets	 90,614	 27,694	

Gross deferred tax assets	 556,340	 490,558	

Net deferred tax asset	 450,000	 420,000

20.	 Dividends			
               2004	      2003			

               $	      $	
Dividends paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2004 :-	

Interim :		
- Ordinary shares of 4.15% (2003 : 4.15%) less tax	 515,881	 442,938	

Special :		
- Ordinary shares of 16.52% (2003 : 8.30%) less tax	 2,053,579	 885,874	

Dividends paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2003 :-	

Final paid :		
- Ordinary shares of 8.5% (2002 : 9.98%) less tax	 1,031,014	 1,056,288	

Special :		
- Ordinary shares of 8.5% (2002 : 9.98%) less tax	 1,031,014	 1,056,288				

4,631,488	 3,441,388	

The Directors proposed that a second and a final dividend of 8.5% per ordinary share less tax and a special dividend 	
(tax exempt one-tier) of 13.0%  per ordinary share, amounting to $1,069,093 and $2,043,804 respectively be paid for 	
the year ended 31 December 2004.
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21. 	 Earnings per share	

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 	
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.	

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 	
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (adjusted for the effects	
of dilutive options).	

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations 	
for the years ended 31 December :				

2004		 2003				
$		 $	

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 		
for basic and diluted earnings per share	 5,688,616	 3,462,000			

2004	 2003			
No. of shares	 No. of shares						

Weighted average number of ordinary 		
shares outstanding during the year	 302,866,303	 270,821,667	

Bonus shares	 – 	 27,423,138	

Weighted average number of 		
ordinary shares issued under 		
Employee Share Option Scheme	 4,634,129	 1,335,343		

Weighted average number of 		
ordinary shares applicable to 		
basic earnings per share	 307,500,432	 299,580,148	

Basic earnings per share (cents)	 1.85	 1.15
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21. 	 Earnings per share (cont’d)					

2004	 2003					
No. of shares	 No. of shares	

Weighted average number of 		
ordinary shares applicable to 		
basic earnings per share		 307,500,432	 299,580,148	

Weighted average number of 		
unissued ordinary shares under 		
Employee Share Option Scheme		 21,451,440	 35,001,296	

Number of ordinary shares that 		
would have been issued at fair value		 (14,772,033)	 (26,117,193)		

Adjusted weighted average number 		
of ordinary shares applicable to 		
diluted earnings per share		 314,179,839	 308,464,251	

Diluted earnings per share (cents)		 1.81	 1.12		

At the date of the report, 12,058,512 share options have been exercised.

22.	 Interest in joint venture	

The Group has 53.33% interest in the assets, liabilities, expenses and revenue of CEI-TOYO Singapore Pte Ltd.	

The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint venture, which are included in 	
the consolidated financial statements, are as follows :					

2004	 2003					
$	 $	

Non-Current Assets			 121	 687			

Current Assets			 370,128	 493,899		
Current Liabilities			 (138,174)	 (259,505)	

Net Current Assets			 231,954	 234,394	

Net Assets			 232,075	 235,081	

Revenue			 31,473	 168,442	
Cost of sales			 (30,027)	 (158,997)	
Other income			 41,964	 1,297	
Expenditure			 (46,418)	 (445,722)	

Loss before tax			 (3,008)	 (434,980)
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23.	 Directors’ and Employees Information	

(a)	Employees remuneration			

                                      				  Group               	  							
                     2004                          2003						

$	 $		
Salary and employee benefits			 8,888,080	 7,871,833		

Included in employees remuneration are remuneration of executives and directors under the employment 		
of the Group and the Company.	

(b)	The number of employees in the Group as at 31 December 2004 was 616 (2003 : 571).	

(c)	The table below shows the ranges of gross remuneration received by the top 5 executives (excluding 		
directors) of the Company.						

2004	 2003		

Number of executives of the Group in remuneration bands :		
$250,000 to $499,000			 1	 –		
Below $250,000			 4	 5		

Total			 5	 5		

Note: Remuneration paid to Mr Tien Sing Gee, who is related to Executive Chairman was $220,650 		
(2003: $195,000).

24.	 Employee benefits	

The Company has an employee share incentive plan, CEI Contract Manufacturing Employees Share Option 
Scheme for the granting of non-transferable options.  Options are granted at the prevailing market price 
determined as the average price of the five (5) consecutive trading days immediately preceding the Date of 
Grant of option.	

The subscription of price for each share in respect of which an Option is exercisable shall be a discount of 
between zero (0) and 20% of the prevailing market price.  The quantum of discount is performance driven, 
formula-based and considers the Group’s audited profit after taxation for two consecutive financial years 
starting with the financial year in which the Option was granted.
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24.	 Employee benefits (cont’d)	

Options may only be exercised after the second anniversary of the Date of Grant of that Option but before the 
fifth anniversary of the Date of Grant of that Option.  Options granted are cancelled when the option holder 
ceases to be under full employment of the Company or any corporation in the Group subject to certain 
exceptions at the discretion of the Company.	

Information with respect to the number of options granted under the CEI Contract Manufacturing Employees 
Share Option Scheme is as follows :			

 Number of shares		
2004		 2003		

                                   Share options of $0.1803	
(i)  Issued on 5 June 2000 :-	                                    each exercisable from		

                                   5.6.2002 to 5.6.2005				

Outstanding at beginning of year	 8,360,440	 8,972,480	
Adjusted for bonus issue	 –	 771,512		

8,360,440	 9,743,992
Forfeited	 (553,704)	 (141,120)
Exercised	 (4,128,632)	 (1)	 (1,242,432) 	

Outstanding at end of year	 3,678,104	 8,360,440	

(1) 	 Consideration received from options exercised during the year was $744,392 (2003 : $224,010)		
The above options issued are at a 20% discount off the market price at date of grant.			

Share options of $0.1490	
(ii)  Issued on 2 February 2001 :-		    each exercisable from			

     2.2.2003 to 2.2.2006		

Outstanding at beginning of year	 6,301,856	 8,523,360	
Adjusted for bonus issue	 –	 628,816			

6,301,856	 9,152,176	
Forfeited	 (440)	 (87,840)	
Exercised	 (4,387,480)	 (2)	 (2,762,480)	

Outstanding at end of year	 1,913,936	 6,301,856	

(2)	 Consideration received from options exercised during the year was $653,735 (2003 : $411,610).		
The above options are issued at a 20% discount off the market price at date of grant.
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24.	 Employee benefits (cont’d)					
Number of shares				

2004		 2003			
                                               	Share options of $0.1215 each 	

(iii)  Issued on 18 September 2002 :-				 exercisable from					
                    18.9.2004 to 18.9.2007

Outstanding at beginning of year			 9,207,000	 8,602,000
Adjusted for bonus issue			 –	 839,200				

9,207,000	 9,441,200
Forfeited			 (156,200)	 (234,200)
Exercised			 (3,542,400)	(3)	 –     

Outstanding at end of year			 5,508,400	 9,207,000	

(3)		 Consideration received from options exercised during the year was $430,402 (2003 : Nil).	
The above options are issued at a 20% discount off the market price at date of grant.			

                                               	Share options of $0.1236 each 	
(iv)  Issued on 13 February 2003 :-				 exercisable from					

                     13.2.2005 to 13.2.2008

Issued on 13 February 2003			 8,525,000	 7,850,000
Adjusted for bonus issue			 –	 777,000				

8,525,000	 8,627,000
Forfeited			 (605,000)	 (102,000)

Outstanding at end of year			 7,920,000	 8,525,000	

The above options are issued at a 20% discount off the market price at date of grant.			

                                                 	Share options of $0.1578 each 	
(v)  Issued on 7 July 2003 :-				 exercisable from					

                      7.7.2005 to 7.7.2008

Issued on 7 July 2003			 2,607,000	 2,370,000
Adjusted for bonus issue			 –	 237,000				

2,607,000	 2,607,000
Forfeited			 (176,000)	 –     

Outstanding at end of year			 2,431,000	 2,607,000	

The above options are issued at a 20% discount off the market price at date of grant.
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24.	 Employee benefits (cont’d)	

The following table summarises information about options outstanding as at 31 December 2004 :-	

Date of grant		 Options	 Outstanding	 Outstanding				
Average	 Average						

Life (4)	 Option Price ($)		

5 June 2000		 3,678,104	 0.5	 0.1803	
2 February 2001		 1,913,936	 1.2	 0.1490	
18 September 2002		 5,508,400	 2.8	 0.1215	
13 February 2003		 7,920,000	 3.2	 0.1236	
7 July 2003		 2,431,000	 3.6	 0.1578	

Total		 21,451,440	 2.5	 0.1389	

(4) Weighted-average contractual life remaining in years.

25.	 Related party disclosures	

During the year, there were the following significant transactions with related parties based on terms agreed
 	 by the parties :-			

                                                                                Group	                	                                    Company			
2004	 2003	 2004	 2003			

$	 $	 $	 $	
Sales made to related 		

companies	 2,902,676	 1,783,138	 2,738,735	 624,082		

Subcontract cost paid to 		
subsidiary company	 –	 –	 3,295,787	 2,609,759		

Rental paid to subsidiary 		
company	 –	 –	 133,974	            –    	

Rental paid to associated 		
company	 133,974	 267,948	 133,974	 267,948		

Interest income arising from 		
loan granted to associated 		
company	 –	 31,030	 –	 31,030	

These transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis on normal commercial terms.
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26.	 Financial instruments	

Financial risk management objectives and policies	

The Group is exposed to market risk, including primarily changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates 
and uses derivatives and other instruments in connection with its risk management activities.  The Group does 
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.  The Board reviews and agrees policies 
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.	

Interest rate risk	

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable banks, financial institutions.  The Group manages its
interest rate risks on its interest income by placing the cash balances in fixed deposits / products of varying 
maturities and interest rate terms.	

The Group does not engage in external financing.	

Information relating to the Group’s interest rate exposure is also disclosed in the notes on the Group’s investment 
securities, cash and cash equivalents.	

Foreign currency risk	

The Group uses foreign exchange contracts in managing its foreign currency risk arising from cash flows from 
anticipated transactions and financing arrangements denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the US 
dollar.  Transaction risk is calculated in each foreign currency and includes foreign currency denominated assets 
and liabilities and firm probable purchases and sales commitments.	

As at the balance sheet date, after taking into account the effects of forward foreign exchange contracts, the 
Group’s currency exposures are insignificant.	

Credit risk	

Credit risk arising from the inability of a counterparty to meet the terms of the Group’s financial instrument 
contracts is generally limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparty’s obligations exceed the 
obligations of the Group.  It is the Group’s policy to enter into financial instruments with a diversity of creditworthy 
counterparties.  Therefore, the Group does not expect to incur material credit losses on its risk management 
or other financial instruments.	

Fair value of financial instruments	

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing models 
as appropriate.	

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:	

Bank balances, short-term receivables and current liabilities	

The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of these instruments.



54

26.	 Financial instruments (cont’d)	

Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)	

Unquoted investments	

It is not practicable to determine the fair values of unquoted investments, because of the lack of quoted market 
prices and the assumptions used in valuation models to value these investments cannot be reasonably 
determined.	

Derivatives	

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is estimated based on the difference between the applicable 
forward rates prevailing at the balance sheet date and the contracted forward rates, multiplied by the notional 
amount and discounted to present value.		

As of 31 December 2004, the notional principal amounts and estimated fair values for foreign exchange contracts 
for the Group and Company are presented in the following table :			

2004		 2003			
Contractual	 Estimated	 Contractual	 Estimated 			

notional	 fair value	 notional	 fair value				
amount		 amount 			

$’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000			

Foreign exchange forward 		
contracts to hedge trade debtors	 9,565	 89	 1,707	 15		

The maturity date of the foreign exchange forward contract approximate the timing of the expected cash flow 
of the hedged item, which are on varying periods up to 6 months from the financial year end.	

Credit risk exposures	

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk (not taking into account the value of any collateral or other 
security held) in the event the counterparties fail to perform their obligations as of 31 December 2004 in relation 
to each class of recognised financial assets, other than derivatives, is the carrying amount of these assets as 
indicated in the balance sheet.	

With respect to derivative financial instruments, credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties 
to meet their obligations under the contract or arrangement.  The Group and Company’s maximum credit risk 
exposure for derivative instruments is as follows :	

Foreign exchange contracts – the full amount of the foreign currency the Group and Company will be required 
to pay or purchase when settling the forward exchange contracts, should the counterparties not pay the currency 
they are committed to deliver to the Group and Company	

Significant concentrations of credit risk	

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in economic industry or geographical factors similarly affects 
groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total credit 
exposure.  The Group’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified along industry, product and 
geographical lines, and transactions are entered into with diverse creditworthy counterparties, thereby mitigating 
any significant concentration of credit risk.

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2003
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27.	 Information by segment on the Group’s operations

(a)	 By business activity :	

The Group’s principal activity consists wholly of printed circuit board assembly and box-build operations, 	
therefore, no segment reporting of business activity is appropriate.

(b)	 By geographical areas :	

The Group’s geographical segments are based on the location of customers.	

The Group’s assets are based mainly in Singapore, Indonesia and Vietnam where the Group operates.	

The following table presents revenue and expenditure information regarding geographical segments for the 	
year ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 and certain asset and liability information regarding geographical 	
segments at 31 December 2004 and 2003.			

  	                                     Asia-Pacific		                   USA		                 Europe	                    	Consolidated				
2004	 2003	 2004	 2003	 2004	 2003	 2004	 2003				
$’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	

Segment turnover		
Sales	 7,993	 8,604	 41,952	 21,805	 12,506	 10,569	 62,451	 40,978		
Cost of sales	 (6,065)	 (6,096)	 (29,586)	 (13,322)	 (8,208)	 (6,297)	 (43,859)	 (25,715)	

Gross profit	 1,928	 2,508	 12,366	 8,483	 4,298	 4,272	 18,592	 15,263	
Unallocated expenses							 (10,697)	 (9,366)	

Operating profit							 7,895	 5,897	
Interest expense							 – 	 –   	
Share of results of 		

associated company							 (176)	 (489)	

Profit before taxation							 7,719	 5,408	
Tax expense							 (2,030)	 (1,946)	

Net profit for the year							 5,689	 3,462	

Other geographical information		

Segment assets	 2,221	 2,381	 10,141	 5,337	 2,722	 2,151	 15,084	 9,869	

Interests in associated 		
company	 200	 1,629	 –	 –	 –	 –	 200	 1,629	

Unallocated assets*	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 27,832	 26,648	

Total assets	 2,421	 4,010	 10,141	 5,337	 2,722	 2,151	 43,116	 38,146	

Unallocated and 		
total liabilities							 14,266	 12,182	

Other segment information:	

Impairment of 		
goodwill	 100	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 100	 –

* 	 Capital expenditures of approximately $1,113,000 (2003: $1,243,000) and depreciation charge of approximately 	
$1,253,000 (2003: $1,115,000) relate to that	of the unallocated assets.



Statistics Of Shareholdings As At 14 February 2005

Authorised share capital	 :	 S$50,000,000.00
Issued and fully paid-up capital	 :	 S$15,792.072.90
Class of shares	 :	 Ordinary Share of S$0.05 each
Voting rights	 :	 One vote per share

Distribution of Shareholdings
Size of Shareholdings	 No of Shareholders	 %	 No of Shares	 %
1 – 999	 288	 5.96	 129,247	 0.04
1,000 – 10,000	 1,953	 40.44	 10,500,229	 3.33
10,001 – 1,000,000	 2,556	 52.92	 108,505,585	 34.35
1,000,001 and above	 33	 0.68	 196,706,397	 62.28

Total		 4,830	 100.00	 315,841,458	 100.00

Twenty Largest Shareholders
Name			 No of Shares		 %

1.	 Republic Technologies Pte Ltd		 62,726,400		 19.86
2.	 Tien Sing Cheong		 33,807,600		 10.70
3.	 Tan Ka Huat @ Kaharianto Tanmalano		 15,021,360		 4.76
4.	 DBS Nominees Pte Ltd		 6,262,220		 1.98
5.	 Ng Cheng Kung		 6,196,960		 1.96
6.	 UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd		 5,661,128		 1.79
7.	 United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd		 5,501,320		 1.74
8.	 Heng Teck Yow		 5,420,800		 1.72
9. 	 Thng Ah Hiang		 4,408,800		 1.40
10. 	 Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte Ltd		 4,065,320		 1.29
11.	 Tan Cheok Hoong		 4,023,000		 1.27
12.	 Tan Kim Yong		 3,946,800		 1.25
13.	 DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd		 3,792,368		 1.20
14.	 The Asia Life Assurance Society Ltd - Par Fund		 3,267,000		 1.03
15.	 OCBC Securities Private Limited		 3,229,800		 1.02
16.	 Lim Sea Leang		 2,994,536		 0.95
17.	 OCBC Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd		 2,981,988		 0.94
18.	 Lim Pak Hwa		 2,790,192		 0.88
19.	 Citibank Consumer Nominees Pte Ltd		 2,652,052		 0.84
20.	 HL Bank Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd		 2,013,776		 0.64

Total			 180,763,420		 57.22

Substantial Shareholders
Substantial shareholders as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 14 February 2005			

No of Shares Held By		 No of Shares Held By			
Substantial Shareholders		 Substantial Shareholders			

Direct Interest	 %	 are deemed interested	 %

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited	 –	 –	 62,726,400	 19.86
Republic Technologies Pte Ltd	 62,726,400	 19.86	 –	 –
Tien Sing Cheong	 33,807,600	 10.70	 –	 –

More than 10% of the Company’s shares are held in the hands of the public. Accordingly, the Company has complied 
with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
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CEI CONTRACT MANUFACTURING LIMITED
Company Registration No: 199905114H
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of CEI Contract Manufacturing Limited (“the 
Company”) will be held at Raffles City Convention Centre, Moor Room (Level 4), 2 Stamford Road, Singapore 
178882 on Monday, 28 March 2005 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 	
31 December 2004 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.	 (Resolution 1)		

2.	 To declare Second and Final dividend of 0.425 cents per ordinary share less income tax for the year ended 
31 December 2004 (2003: 0.425 cents per ordinary share).	 (Resolution 2)

3.	 To declare a Tax Exempt Special Dividend of 0.65 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 
2004 (2003: 0.425 cents per ordinary share)	 (Resolution 3)	

4.	 To re-elect Mr Tan Bien Chuan, who is retiring under Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
as a Director of the Company.				

Mr Tan Bien Chuan will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain a member of the Audit 
Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee and will be considered independent for the	
purposes of Rule 704(8) of Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. 			

(Resolution 4)

5.	 To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$130,200 for the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003: S$124,000).			
(Resolution 5)		

6.	 To re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.			
(Resolution 6)		

7.	 To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any 
modifications:		

8.	 Authority to allot and issue shares up to 50 per centum (50%) of issued share capital	

"That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, the Directors be empowered to allot and issue shares and convertible 
securities in the capital of the Company at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes 
as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares 
(including shares to be issued in accordance with the terms of convertible securities issued, made or granted 
pursuant to this Resolution) to be allotted and issued pursuant to this Resolution shall not exceed fifty per 
centum (50%) of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this Resolution, of which 
the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to all 
shareholders of the Company shall not exceed twenty per centum (20%) of the issued share capital of the 
Company and that such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, continue 
in force until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting or the date by which the next 
Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier." [See Explanatory 
Note (i)]	 (Resolution 7)



58

9.	 Authority to allot and issue shares under the CEI ESOS	

“That the Directors be and are hereby authorised to offer and grant options from time to time in accordance 
with the provisions of the CEI Contract Manufacturing Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”); and 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 to allot and issue from time to time 
such number of shares in the capital of the Company (the “Scheme Shares”) as may be required to be issued 
pursuant to the exercise of the options that may be granted under the Scheme provided always that the 
aggregate number of Scheme Shares shall not exceed fifteen per centum (15%) of the issued share capital of 
the Company for the time being and that such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in 
general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting.” [See 
Explanatory Note (ii)]	 (Resolution 8)

By Order of the Board

Susie Low Geok Eng
Company Secretary
10 March 2005

Explanatory Notes:

(i)	 The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of 
this Meeting until the date of the next Annual General Meeting, or the date by which the next Annual General 
Meeting is required by law to be held or when varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting, whichever 
is the earlier, to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the Company.  The number of shares and 
convertible securities that the Directors may allot and issue under this resolution would not exceed fifty per 
centum (50%) of the issued capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this resolution.  For issue of 
shares and convertible securities other than on a pro rata basis to all shareholders, the aggregate number of 
shares and convertible securities to be issued shall not exceed twenty per centum (20%) of the issued capital 
of the Company.	

For the purpose of this resolution, the percentage of issued capital is based on the Company’s issued capital 
at the time this proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed after adjusting for new shares arising from the 
conversion or exercise of convertible securities, the exercise of share options or the vesting of share awards 
outstanding or subsisting at the time when this proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed and any subsequent 
consolidation or subdivision of shares.

(ii)	 The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 9 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, 
from the date of the above Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue shares 
in the Company of up to a number not exceeding in total fifteen per centum (15%) of the issued share 	
capital of the Company from time to time pursuant to the exercise of the options under the Scheme.

Notes:

1.	 A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint 	
a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead.  A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.	

2.	 The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 
Lim Associates (Pte) Ltd 10 Collyer Quay #19-08 Ocean Building Singapore 049315 not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.
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Total number of Shares	 No. of Shares
(a)	 CDP Register
(b)	 Register of  Members

IMPORTANT
1.	 For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy CEI 

shares, the Annual Report is forwarded to them at the 
request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent 
solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2.	 This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and 
shall be ineffective for all intents and purpose if used or 
purported to be used by them.

3. 	 CPF Investors who wish to vote and/or attend should 
contact their CPF Approved Nominees.

CEI CONTRACT MANUFACTURING LIMITED
Company Registration No: 199905114H
(Incorporated In The Republic Of Singapore)

PROXY FORM
(Please see notes overleaf before completing this Form)

I/We,  ___________________________________________________________________________________________      (Name)
of       ___________________________________________________________________________________________   (Address)
being a member/members of CEI CONTRACT MANUFACTURING LIMITED  (the “Company”), hereby appoint:	

Name	 Address	 NRIC/Passport	 Proportion of 				
Number	 Shareholdings (%)

and /or (delete as appropriate)	

Name	 Address	 NRIC/Passport	 Proportion of 				
Number	 Shareholdings (%)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, 
demand for a poll at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 28 March 2005 at 10.00 a.m. and 
at any adjournment thereof.  The proxy is to vote on the business before the meeting as indicated below.  If no 
specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion, as he/she 
will on any other matter arising at the Meeting:	

Resolutions relating to:	 For	 Against
1	 The adoption of Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts together with the 	

Auditors’ Report thereon

2	 Declaration of Second and Final Dividend of 0.425 cents per ordinary share less 	

income tax
3	 Declaration of Tax Exempt Special Dividend of 0.65 cents per ordinary share

4	 Re-election of Mr Tan Bien Chuan as a Director of the Company

5	 Approval of the payment of Directors’ fees of S$130,200

6	 Re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise 	
Directors to fix their remuneration

7	 Authority to allot and issue shares up to 50% of issued share capital
8	 Authority to allot and issue shares under the CEI ESOS

(Please indicate with a cross [X] in the space provided whether you wish your vote to be cast for or against the 
Resolutions as set out in the Notice of the Meeting.)

Dated this ______________  day of  ______________  2005

_________________________________________
Signature of Shareholder(s)
or, Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder
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CEI CONTRACT MANUFACTURING LIMITED
Company Registration No: 199905114H
(Incorporated In The Republic Of Singapore)				

PROXY FORM (Cont’d Page 2) 

Notes:

1.	 Please insert the total number of Shares held by you.  If you have Shares entered against your name in the 
Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should 
insert that number of Shares.  If you have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you 
should insert that number of Shares.  If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register 
and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of 
Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of 
Members.  If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate 
to all the Shares held by you.

2.	 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one	
or two proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3.	 Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the proportion	
of his/her shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

4.	 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 
10 Collyer Quay #19-08, Ocean Building, Singapore 049315 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time 
appointed for the Annual General Meeting.

5.	 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly 
authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it 
must be executed either under its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6.	 A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such 
person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies 
Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

General:

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly 
completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of 
the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.  In addition, in the case of Shares entered 
in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the 
member, being the appointor, is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the Depository Register 
as at forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository 
(Pte) Limited to the Company.
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